	
	
	







GROUP INSURANCE COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, May 21 2026
8:30 A.M.-10:00 A.M.

Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

NUMBER: 	Seven Hundred and Three
DATE:		May 21, 2026
TIME:		8:30 A.M.
PLACE:	Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel

Commissioners Present: 
VALERIE SULLIVAN (Chair, Public Member) 
BOBBI KAPLAN (Vice Chair, NAGE) 
MATTHEW GORZKOWICZ (Secretary of Administration and Finance) Designee:  Anna Freedman 
MICHAEL CALJOUW (Commissioner of Insurance) Designee: Rebecca Butler  
MARTIN CURLEY (Public Safety)
TAMARA P. DAVIS (Public Member)
JANE EDMONDS (Retiree)
GERZINO GUIRAND (Council 93, AFSCME, AFL-CIO) 
EILEEN P. MCANNENY (Public Member) 
MELISSA MURPHY-RODRIGUEZ (Massachusetts Municipal Association)
KRISTIN PEPIN (NAGE)
DEAN ROBINSON (Massachusetts Teachers Association) 
JASON SILVA (Massachusetts Municipal Association) 
ANNA SINAIKO, Ph.D. (Health Economist) 
CATHERINE WEST (Public Member) 


I. Introduction and Approval of the Minutes 
At 8:30 A.M. The Chair started the meeting and announced the Commissioners in attendance. The Chair stated that Commissioners Tobey Choate and Darren Ambler would be leaving. Both Commissioners gave remarks. The Chair stated that Dana Sullivan had moved to the Massachusetts Housing Partnership and Anna Freedman will now be the Administration and Finance (ANF) designee. The Chair then turned the meeting to Executive Director Matthew Veno to review the agenda for the meeting. 
Executive Director Veno reviewed the agenda. He then turned the meeting back to the Chair.
The Chair called for a motion to approve both minutes from February 26, 2026 and March 5, 2026. Vice Chair Kaplan made the motion and Commissioner McAnneny seconded. The General Counsel took a roll call vote. 
Chair Sullivan voted aye
Vice Chair Kaplan voted yes
Designee Freedman voted abstained
Designee Butler voted aye
Commissioner Curley voted aye
Commissioner Davis voted aye
Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
Commissioner Guirand voted yes
Commissioner McAnneny voted yes
Commissioner Pepin voted yes
Commissioner Robinson voted aye
Commissioner Silva voted yes
Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
Commissioner West voted yes
The motion passed with one abstention. 
II. Executive Director’s Report
Presented by Matthew Veno, Executive Director and Members of Senior Staff
The Executive Director informed the Commission that the GIC hired John Viarella as Director of Human Resources and Caroline LeBlanc as an Office Support Specialist in the Retiree unit. He stated that GIC currently has two open positions, Budget Director and Project Manager. He asked commissioners to share this information with people in their networks. 
He then noted that the budget deliberation was underway in the Legislature and the GIC sought legislative language to support the approved plan design change regarding a uniform reimbursement methodology for out-of-network services. Representative John Lawn from Watertown who co-chairs the Committee on Health Care Financing has filed an amendment on our behalf; the amendment was not adopted in the House budget. The Executive Director thanked Representative Lawn for his support. 
Deputy Executive Director Erika Scibelli provided an update regarding Vida Health, noting that the GIC is expecting a contract amendment from Vida. She stated that there had been an significant amount of concern expressed by members regarding the removal of coverage for GLP-1 medication to treat obesity. Beginning on July 1, she continued, the GIC will still have Vida available through the end of the calendar year for weight management support, and to help members find private pay channels for the medications. Also starting on July 1, prescribing of any GLP-1 medications for obesity will revert to community providers and prescriptions will flow through CVS’ utilization management as they did prior to implementation of Vida. She then explained what is being done to communicate changes around GLP-1 medication and Vida to members. 
Vice Chair Kaplan asked what the process would be for providers to prescribe and obtain approval for their patients if they are GLP-1 medication eligible. The Deputy Executive Director stated that the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) will be updated on the GIC website to explain what will qualify, subject to change per the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA). The prior authorization process will revert to how it was before implementation of Vida and the Deputy Executive Director said she would ensure the Vice Chair and Commissioners have the details. The General Counsel stated that all current prior authorizations will be shut off as of July 1, 2026; those who qualify for medication under the new criteria will need to obtain a new prior authorization through CVS. He stated that the GIC is working with CVS to allow providers to obtain a new prior authorization earlier, if possible, but that is still being worked out. 
The Chair asked whether CVS is charging more money for the new prior authorizations. The General Counsel clarified that CVS will not be and has never charged per prior authorization. 
The Vice Chair stated that members are concerned about missing doses through this transition.
III. Hospital Price Caps: State Updates and Debunking Common Misconceptions
Presented by Michael Bailit, President, Bailit Health
Mr. Bailit stated that he would present what other states are doing to implement price caps on hospital payments. He disclaimed that any opinions he expresses are his own. He explained the general policy design of hospital price caps. He stated that five states have implemented or are preparing implement to such policies and noted that more are working on related legislation. 
Oregon implemented price caps in 2019, and it is still in place and is applied to state and school-based employee health plans. The data has proven this effort to be effective in curbing costs while not destabilizing the health care delivery system. He then presented on New Mexico’s efforts, which applied to state and school-based employee health plans. This was implemented in 2025 and is also still in place. He stated that Vermont will implement price caps via provider regulation and it will be put into place in October 2026. It aims to apply to hospital inpatient and outpatient services for the entire commercial market. 
Commissioner McAnneny asked how Vermont was able to get around ERISA and implement this for the entire commercial market. Mr. Bailit said they are regulating providers, not insurers.  
Mr. Bailit then presented on Washington State’s price cap program, noting that it is structured similar to Oregon’s program. Indiana passed legislation last year and their program won’t go into effect until 2029. Indiana is regulating providers and is not using a percentage of Medicare payment model, he continued, but the price cap will be tied to statewide average payment rates for inpatient and outpatient services. Importantly, Indiana will strip hospitals of their non-profit status if the hospital fails to meet the price cap benchmarks, until they lower prices below the statewide average.  
Mr. Bailit then discussed how price caps are often misunderstood and mischaracterized. He stated that the following misconceptions are not supported by the evidence.
Price caps are criticized for not addressing the right problem. The data shows, instead, that it is the hospital and healthcare prices and not utilization that have been the primary driver of health care spending growth for over a decade. This is particularly true of hospital spending. 
The Chair asked what hospitals are saying is the problem. Mr. Bailit said that their claims run the gamut, including staffing shortages, inflation caused by rising oil prices due to the war in Iran, and many other things, but while those may be contributing factors, they are not the primary drivers. 
He then addressed the argument that Massachusetts hospital prices are not excessively high and therefore price caps are not necessary. He stated critics often point to Massachusetts providers not being unusually high compared to Medicare, but noted that this is not a good comparator because Medicare prices are extremely high for this area. He continued that when the prices in Massachusetts are standardized, our state’s hospitals are in the 89th and 90th percentiles for all hospitals, nationally. He stated that hospitals argue that prices are high because hospitals are limited in their ability to reduce costs given that so much of their spending goes towards fixed expenses like salaries and facility maintenance. He said that the data shows that it is, instead, hospital market power that drives price increases – those with it raise their prices and those without it do not. There is ample evidence that hospitals are able to control prices, he stated, and that truly competitive markets make hospitals manage their costs more efficiently. 
Mr. Bailit then addressed the claim that price caps will force hospitals to close and impede access to care. He said that, in fact, it is possible to avoid these outcomes. The largest provider systems in Massachusetts all have very substantial reserves that they can use to avoid this. Many systems are ultra-wealthy. He stated that hospitals often threaten to leave health plan networks, but other states who have implemented caps have not experienced this. By capping out-of-network rates as well, this disincentivizes hospitals from leaving networks. 
Commissioner Davis asked about suburban hospitals being acquired and that they are often not as financially stable. She asked how this impacts those smaller and suburban hospitals. Mr. Bailit said that there are ways to support those hospitals, for example, hospitals that do not meet certain financial criteria can be exempted. This can also be structured a temporary exemption. The Chair asked about different hospitals. Mr. Bailit said that this is why it is preferable to regulate at the system level and not the individual hospital level. 
Mr. Bailit said that it is a myth that hospital price caps will diminish the quality of care. He stated that there is mixed evidence in this area, but it is well established that price and quality do not have a strong causal relationship. He emphasized that Massachusetts has long documented unwarranted price variation where higher prices do not equate to higher quality. 
Mr. Bailit then addressed the assertion that price caps will harm the local economy. He stated that economists have looked at this and high health care costs actually harm the local economy and employers’ ability to hire and pay proper wages. He emphasized that health care expenses are choking out wages. The evidence shows, he continued, that the growth in health care comes at the expense of growth of other sectors of the economy. 
He then addressed the criticism that price caps will lead to cost-shifting. He said that the research has demonstrated overwhelmingly that this is untrue. He stated that hospitals do not raise prices in response to lower Medicare and Medicaid payment levels, but rather to maximize revenue. Boston Medical Center is a good example of a hospital that has a high public payer mix and their costs are lower than many others. He stated that in Oregon, imposing price caps on state and school-based employee health plans did not result in prices rising for other insurance plans and other services. Hospitals can take measures to manage their revenue efficiently.
Mr. Bailit encouraged the GIC to implement price caps. He stated that there is not enough money to pay for excessively high hospital prices. He added that cost savings measures should not fall onto the backs of state employees or the state’s taxpayers. 
Commissioner McAnneny stated that in Massachusetts many people are reluctant to change because health care is a large economic sector. She asked how he would address those concerns. He responded that while it is true that we have more academic medical centers than other states, it is also true that most states have health care as a large part of their economy. He acknowledged that implementing price caps is not a “walk in the park,” but they advance when there is a sense that the state is in a moment of crisis. He said that other states ended up at a breaking point and took initiative. 
Commissioner Robinson asked where the references are located for the presentation. Mr. Bailit said that they are at the back of the slide deck. Commissioner Robinson said that health care costs are leading to job losses in other areas of the Massachusetts economy, and he believes it is more than urgent for action to be taken. 
Vice Chair Kaplan voiced support for these initiatives. She asked if there are other ways to approach the issue and how quickly price caps can be implemented, as she also feels this is an urgent matter. She underscored that many people are delaying care due to costs. 
Commissioner Davis reminded everyone that Commissioner McAnneny proposed last meeting to examine alternative payment approaches such as this. She said that she is not confident in the recently formed Health Care Affordability Working Group’s ability to solve this problem expeditiously, if at all. She said that the Commission needs to take action and she supports Commissioner’s McAnneny’s suggestion to do something about it here at the Commission level. 	Comment by Williams, Emily A (GIC): A good reminder that the commission is looking for solutions through the working group or otherwise. 
Commissioner McAnneny stated that the legislative process can be very lengthy and can be contentious, but the GIC has the ability to control what we offer our members from a regulatory perspective that will likely be more expeditious. 
Designee Freedman asked whether a helpful next step would be to look at more Massachusetts specific data to understand the context and what options the GIC might have based on that data. The Executive Director said that is possible and agreed that it would be helpful. 
The Vice Chair thanked Commissioner McAnneny for her suggestions, and she recognizes that the GIC should work around the legislative process which often delays or completely stalls solutions. 
The Executive Director thanked Mr. Bailit for this informative presentation and encouraged Commissioner to explore the supplemental resources included in the appendix of the slide deck.



IV. CFO Report
Presented by Jennifer Hewitt, GIC Chief Financial Officer
The CFO presented the year-to-date FY26 spending for both state appropriated and enrollee share premium accounts. She then presented the spending versus appropriated funds, including the supplemental budget appropriation. She then showed a slide demonstrating the cumulative growth of available funds versus actual spending. She explained to the Commissioners the different funding accounts which fund GIC spending and explained what factors contributed to needing supplemental funding. She then showed the FY27 summary budget. She shared the reasons why she expects to need supplemental funding for FY27 as well. 
Vice Chair Kaplan stated that what the CFO presented only underscored the need for the GIC to take action to control costs directly. 
V. Other Business and Adjournment
Presented by Valerie Sullivan, Chair and Matthew Veno, Executive Director
The Executive Director stated that Commissioner McAnneny, who is no longer on the call, had forwarded a forum invite and she had encouraged the Commissioners to attend this to further educate themselves. 
The Chair asked for a motion to adjourn. The Vice Chair moved. Commissioner West seconded. With no opposition, the meeting was adjourned. 
	
	
	



